2010

Vilma Estrada v. Robin Mendoza, Fred W. Almanza,
Feria Access LLC, Southern Management
professional Limited Liability Company, Does 1-50
: Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

1. Was it error for the Court to allow the defendants to raise numerous issues for the first time in their Reply memorandum in support of their Motion to Dismiss – thereby depriving Appellants of an opportunity to adequately brief those issues?

Standard of Review: This is an issue of law, and is reviewed for correctness.

McKay v. Hardy, 973 P.2d 941 (Utah 1998)

Preserved for Appeal in Plaintiff's oral argument at the hearing on February 16, 2010, trial record p 294, at pp. 19, 20 and 40.

2. Is the Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act "preempted" by the Rules of Small Claims Procedures?

Standard of Review: This is an issue of law, and is reviewed for correctness.

McKay v. Hardy, 973 P.2d 941 (Utah 1998)

Preserved for Appeal in Plaintiff's oral argument at the hearing on February 16, 2010, Record 294 – pp. 17-34.

3. Is the Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act “preempted” by Rule 64d of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure?

Standard of Review: This is an issue of law, and is reviewed for correctness.

McKay v. Hardy, 973 P.2d 941 (Utah 1998)

Preserved for Appeal in Plaintiff’s oral argument at the hearing on February 16, 2010, Record 294 - pp. 17-34.

4. Was it error for the Court to rule that Appellants’ complaint failed to plead civil conspiracy properly, and then to deny Appellants the opportunity to amend?

Standard of Review: This is an issue of law, and is reviewed for correctness.

McKay v. Hardy, 973 P.2d 941 (Utah 1998)

Preserved for Appeal in Plaintiff’s oral argument at the hearing on February 16, 2010, Record 294 - pp. 17-34.

5. Was it error for the Court to rule that defendants’ conduct of deliberately and intentionally inflating the amounts they were garnishing from the Appellants was not deceptive and a violation of the Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act?

Standard of Review: This is an issue of law, and is reviewed for correctness.

McKay v. Hardy, 973 P.2d 941 (Utah 1998)

Preserved for Appeal in Plaintiff's oral argument at the hearing on February 16, 2010, Record 294 - pp. 17-34.

6. Was it error for the Court to rule that the defendants' conduct of deliberately and intentionally inflating the amounts they were garnishing from the Appellants was not unconscionable and a violation of the Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act?

Standard of Review: This is an issue of law, and is reviewed for correctness.

McKay v. Hardy, 973 P.2d 941 (Utah 1998)

Preserved for Appeal in Plaintiff's oral argument at the hearing on February 16, 2010, Record 294 - pp. 17-34.

7. Was it error for the Court to rule that Appellants' Complaint failed to state a claim under the Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act?

Standard of Review: This is an issue of law, and is reviewed for correctness.

McKay v. Hardy, 973 P.2d 941 (Utah 1998)

Preserved for Appeal in Plaintiff's oral argument at the hearing on February 16, 2010, Record 294 - pp. 17-34.

8. Was it error for the Court to dismiss Appellants' complaint with prejudice and refuse to allow the Appellants the opportunity to amend their pleadings to cure any alleged defects therein?

Standard of Review: This is an issue of law, and is reviewed for correctness.

McKay v. Hardy, 973 P.2d 941 (Utah 1998)

Preserved for Appeal in Plaintiff's oral argument at the hearing on February 16, 2010, Record 294 - pp. 17-34.

DETERMINATIVE STATUTES AND RULES

Determinative Statutes. The following Statute is determinative, a copy of which is attached in the Addendum.

Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act – UCA 13-11-1 et seq.

Determinative Rules. Appellants do not believe that there are any rules which are determinative.

Determinative Cases. The seminal case on the Civil Conspiracy claim for relief is *Jedrzewski v. Smith*, 2005 UT 85, 128 P.3d 1146 (2005 Utah).

STATEMENT OF CASE

The Appellants each borrowed money from defendant Feria Access at a business establishment in Salt Lake County, Utah.

Feria Access did not have a business license for that location at the time that the loans were made.

Each of the Appellants were sued in Small Claims court in Provo, Utah on their loans. They did not appear and default judgments were entered against them.

During the course of collecting the default judgments, Feria Access presented Applications for Garnishment to the court in order to get Writs of Garnishment issued which knowingly and falsely stated that more was due and owing on the judgment than was really due and owing. Feria Access also included in those Applications and Writs “fees” which exceeded the amount allowed by law. Feria Access obtained multiple Writs of Garnishment against the Appellants and via those Writs, garnished more money from each of the Appellants than the Appellants owed. One of the Appellants – after her judgment was paid in full – was garnished again. When she complained, she was told that her brother owed Feria Access money and that Feria Access was garnishing her for that debt too.

The Appellants did not appeal the small claims judgments.

The Appellants did not object to the writs of garnishment.

The Appellants are all low income, Hispanic persons who could not afford to travel to Provo from Salt Lake County to defend themselves, did not understand how to defend themselves, and were intimidated by the process and just did nothing – which the Defendants knew and took advantage of.

Appellants counsel became aware of the situation and was retained to seek redress for the intentional and wrongful over-garnishing and theft from the Appellants.

Appellants originally filed separate complaints in Salt Lake County. These complaints were transferred to Utah County and then consolidated into this single case.

The defendants filed a Motion to Dismiss – alleging that since the Appellants had not appeared at the small claims hearings and had not availed themselves of their right to appeal a small claims judgment, they were barred from pursuing their (1) Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act (“UCSPA”) claims and (2) their Civil Conspiracy claims.

Appellants opposed the motion stating that they had valid statutory and common law claims which they had the right to pursue.

Defendants – for the first time in their Reply memorandum – asserted that (a) the failure to challenge the writs of garnishment timely barred any UCSPA or Civil Conspiracy claims, and (b) Appellants had not properly pled all of the elements of civil conspiracy (among other new assertions).

Appellants did not have the opportunity to oppose these assertions via a memorandum.

At oral argument, the Appellants objected to these new issues being raised and was forced to argue them without having been given a fair opportunity to analyze and address them. The Court proceeded to essentially elicit and hear

argument not just on the narrow issue of the original motion, but the new issues raised in the Reply and all of the new issues raised by defendants during the oral argument.

Appellants' counsel moved the Court for leave to amend the civil conspiracy claim and other matters if the Court felt like there was any defect therein. The court insisted that the same be made in writing.

The Court took the matter under advisement and issued an oral ruling a few weeks later. The Court ruled essentially that the Utah Small Claims Court Rules and Procedures and URCP Rule 64D trumped or "preempted" the UCSPA and any common law Civil Conspiracy claims - - i.e, failure to follow the appeal rules and/or the Rule 64D procedures for requesting a hearing on a writ of garnishment, resulted in a waiver of any UCSPA claims of deception and unconscionability.

The Court also ruled that even if the Defendants had intentionally and deliberately submitted false Applications for Writs of Garnishment, and used those Writs of Garnishment to take more money from each of the Appellants than those Appellants owed – those were not "deceptive acts," "deceptive practices," "unconscionable acts" or "unconscionable practices" under the UCSPA.

The Court also ruled that Appellants had not properly pled Civil Conspiracy.

The Court signed Findings and Conclusions prepared by defendants' counsel, and entered an order dismissing Appellants' Complaint with prejudice and without any opportunity to amend.

Appellants have appealed these findings, conclusions and dismissal of their complaint.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

1. The Plaintiff(s) is/are individual(s) who reside in Salt Lake County, Utah.
Judge Layton's Finding No. 1. R 272 - 277
2. Defendant, Feria Access LLC., is a business engaged in the practice of payday loans and has an office in Salt Lake County, Utah ("Feria Access").
Judge Layton's Finding No. 2. R 272 - 277
3. The Defendant, Robin Mendoza, is an individual who owns or owned a majority interest in Feria Access, and who masterminded the civil conspiracy and wrongful practices complained of herein. As a result of his direct personal involvement in the torts and other wrongdoing alleged herein, he is personally liable to the plaintiff(s) for the damages which they have suffered at his hands. Judge Layton's Finding No. 3. R 262 -277
4. Southern Management Professional Limited Liability Company is a Utah limited liability company formed by Almanza and Mendoza in an attempt to

hide and/or protect assets from creditors such as Appellants and through which Almanza and Mendoza decided to utilize to perpetrate fraud and wrongdoing upon the Appellants as alleged herein ("Southern Management"). Judge Layton's Finding No. 4. R 272-277

5. Defendant Fred W. Almanza, is an individual who at all relevant times purported to be the principal owner of Southern Management, and who masterminded the civil conspiracy and wrongful practices complained of herein. As a result of his direct personal involvement in the torts and other wrongdoing alleged herein, he is personally liable to the plaintiff(s) for the damages which they have suffered at his hands. Judge Layton's Finding No. 5.R 272-277
6. The Defendants opened a business in South Salt Lake, Utah to make payday loans without first having obtained a license. Consequently, the Defendants are barred from making payday loans. Any payday loans which they made from the South Salt Lake office were and are illegal and unenforceable. Judge Layton's Finding No. 10. R 272-277
7. Appellants went to Defendants' South Salt Lake office not knowing the Defendants' were engaged in an unauthorized and illegal business, and were given a payday advance loan by Feria Access. Judge Layton's Finding No.

11. R 272-277

8. The lending business is illegal, and the loan obtained is knowingly void and unenforceable, yet the Defendants defamed the Appellants by making false and inaccurate credit reports. Judge Layton's Finding No. 12. R 272-277
9. Feria Access did not have a proper license in South Salt Lake, Utah, to make payday loans, when it made the loan to Appellants. The loan is therefore, void and unenforceable. Judge Layton's Finding No. 13. R 272-277
10. Despite the fact that the loan was illegal and void, the defendants filed a lawsuit against the plaintiff(s) in small claims court in the Fourth District Court, in and for the County of Utah, even though the Appellants reside outside of Utah County. This was done with the express intent and hope that the Plaintiff(s) and others similarly situated might be unable to appear in Utah County and thus be defaulted. Judge Layton's Finding No. 14. R 272-277
11. Despite the fact the loan is void and unenforceable, and specifically and intentionally as a result of selecting a deliberately inconvenient forum, Defendant obtained a Default Judgment against the Plaintiff(s) for amounts which the Plaintiff(s) do not legally owe. Judge Layton's Finding No. 15. R

272-277

12. Thereafter the defendants have requested and obtained through fraud upon the Court writs of execution and/or writs of garnishment against the Plaintiff(s) which included unjustified and deliberately inflated "costs" or "judgement" amounts, and the like. These writs were also issued improperly because the judgment is illegal, and seeks recovery of more than would be due if the debt were not void and invalid. Judge Layton's Finding No. 16. R 272-277
13. The defendants and each of them joined together for the common purpose and with the common intent to force the plaintiff(s) and others similarly situated into paying more money to the defendants than the plaintiff(s) rightfully owe. The defendants committed one or illegal or unlawful acts in furtherance of this civil conspiracy, including but not limited to (a) committed fraud upon the court in connection with the issuance of the writs of execution and/or garnishment, (b) defrauding the plaintiff(s) out of the unjustified and inflated amounts of the writs of execution and/or garnishment, (c) violating the FDCPA, (d) violating the UCSPA, (e) violating the Fair Credit Reporting Act ("FCRA") and (f) defaming the plaintiff(s) via the publication through various Credit Reporting Agencies of

false information about what the plaintiff(s) owe to the defendants. Judge Layton's Finding No. 18. R 272-277

14. The plaintiff(s) and each of them [were] damaged as a result of this civil conspiracy in an amount ... not less than \$4500.00 per defendant. Judge Layton's Finding No. 19. R 272-277
15. The defendants are each a supplier with in the meaning of Section §13-11-3(6), Utah Code. Judge Laycock's Finding No. 22, R 272 -277
16. The payday loan to Appellants was a consumer transaction within the meaning of Section §13-11-4(2)(a), Utah Code. Judge Laycock's Finding No. 16 [the second "16"], R 272 -277
17. The making of consumer loans without a proper license was illegal, deceptive and unconscionable. The filing of a consumer lawsuit in Provo on a void and unenforceable debt was unconscionable. The obtaining of a default judgment on a void and unenforceable debt was unconscionable. The issuance of a Writ of Garnishment or Execution which seeks recovery of more than is owed, is deceptive and unconscionable. Judge Laycock's Finding No. 18 [the second "18"], R 272 -277

Procedural History of the Case

18. The Appellants' various complaints were transferred to Fourth District

Court, and then consolidated into this single case. (Court Docket)

19. The Defendants filed a Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings – which had essentially one argument: the UCSPA and Civil Conspiracy claims were barred by the Appellants’ failure to timely file a proper appeal of the small claims judgments against each of them. (See Motion and Memorandum, R. 210, 230)
20. Appellants opposed the motion, asserting that (a) the UCSPA provides important and independent statutory claims for relief , and (b) the common law Civil Conspiracy claim is well recognized – and neither of these claims are barred by any failure to appeal the small claims court judgments. (See Opposition, R. 240)
21. The Defendants filed a Reply memorandum which argued for the first time that (a) the UCSPA does not apply to lawsuits to collect consumer debts, and (b) the Civil Conspiracy claim was not properly pled. (See Reply, R. 247)
22. At oral argument on February 16, 2010, Appellants counsel objected to these new issues being raised in a Reply memorandum. (R. 294)
23. At oral argument, Defendants raised for the first time (a) the argument that Rule 64D trumped or preempted the UCSPA and civil conspiracy claims,

and (b) that Defendants' alleged conduct vis a vis the inflated and wrongful garnishments was not "deceptive" or "unconscionable." (R. 294)

24. At oral argument, Appellants objected to Defendants making the argument that Rule 64D trumped or preempted the UCSPA and civil conspiracy claims. (R. 294)
25. There was no notice to Appellants or opportunity to brief the issues raised in the Reply and at oral argument. (Docket, R. 247 and 294)
26. The Court issued its Findings and Conclusions which adopted all of the Defendants' belated assertions, over Appellants' objections and in violation of Appellants' due process rights. (R. 278)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Plaintiffs/ Appellants Were Denied Their Due Process Rights of Notice and the Opportunity to Brief the Issues. The only issue raised in the original Motion to Dismiss was whether failure to (a) appear at the small claims court hearings, and then (b) to timely and properly appeal the small claims court judgments barred Appellants' claims under the UCSPA and the common law of Civil Conspiracy.

All other issues were raised either in the Reply memorandum or during oral argument itself. Appellants were not given proper and timely notice of these

issues and where therefore deprive of a full and fair opportunity to brief them.

This deprived Appellants of their due process rights.

The Courts conclusions numbers 20-27 (R. 267-268) are all based upon issues not timely and properly raised and briefed and should be reversed.

The Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act is Not Trumped or Preempted by the Small Claims Court Rules and Procedures or URCPA 64D . It is true that there are rules regarding appeals of small claims judgments and for objecting to a writ of garnishment. However, it is also true that the Utah legislature enacted the UCSPA in order to protect consumers from deceptive and unconscionable acts or practices. The analysis that should be followed in determining this issue is that related to “preemption.” When does one statutory scheme “preempt” another? In this case, the legislature clearly established statutory rights and private causes of action. This broad statutory scheme and expression of legislative intent is not and should not be preempted by the small claims court rules and Rule 64D.

Appellants’ Civil Conspiracy Claim is not Trumped or Preempted by the Small Claims Court Rules and Procedures or URCP 64D. The same analysis applies to the Civil Conspiracy common law claim. This state’s courts have recognized and ruled that if the elements of Civil Conspiracy are met, a

remedy and right to recovery are available to the aggrieved entity. Is this claim for relief “preempted” by the small claims court rules and URCP 64d? No, of course not.

Appellants Pled Their Civil Conspiracy Claim Properly – Or Should Have Been Allowed to Amend to Remedy Any Defect. Appellants believe that their Complaint properly set forth the elements of Civil Conspiracy. However, the claim should not have been dismissed with prejudice and without leave to amend.

Making Knowing False Representations in Applications for Writs of Garnishment In Order to Take More Money from the Appellants than They Owed Was Deceptive Under the UCSPA. Defendants’ alleged conduct clearly was deceptive.

Making Knowing False Representations in Applications for Writs of Garnishment In Order to Take More Money from the Appellants than They Owed Was Unconscionable Under the UCSPA. Defendants’ conduct and pattern and practice of doing so was clearly unconscionable.

Appellants’ Complaint Clearly Stated a Claim for Relief Under the UCSPA. Appellants’ Complaint properly pleaded a claim for relief under the UCSPA. Appellants are consumers; Defendants are “suppliers,” the loans were “consumer transactions;” and the conduct was “deceptive” and/or

“unconscionable” “acts or practices.”

The Complaint Should Not Have Been Dismissed With Prejudice

Without Leave to Amend. Absent being barred in their entirety, Appellants’ claims should not have been dismissed with prejudice. Leave to amend should have been afforded in order to make sure that substantial justice is done.

ARGUMENT

I. All Rulings Based Upon Issues Untimely Raised Must be Reversed

Fundamental fairness and due process require that notice and an opportunity to fully brief an issue must be afforded a party against whom relief is sought via one or more motions.

In this case, the original motion raised only one issue – whether the Appellants’ Complaint was barred by Appellants’ failures to timely appeal their small claims judgments. Appellants’ opposing memorandum addressed this issue and this issue alone.

Defendants thereafter raised numerous other issues either (a) in their Reply memorandum or (b) at oral argument. There was no timely notice of these other issues. There was no opportunity to research them and submit a fully thought out and developed memorandum in opposition to them. This motion was “trial by ambush.”

The conclusions of law numbers 20 through 27 must all be reverse due to lack of notice and denial of due process. See *State of Utah v. Phathamavong*, 860 P. 2d 1001 (1993), *Stevens v. Laverkin*, 2008 Utah App 129.

II. The Small Claims Court Rules and URCPA 64D Do Not “Preempt” the UCSPA

Situations do arise where one state statute may overlap another state statute – or, as in this situation, where it seems possible that there is some overlap between the Small Claims Court Rules and URCPA 64D and the UCSPA. The Courts which have dealt with these situations have articulated some principles to assist in the courts in resolving potential overlaps. These include:

1. If at all possible, the overlapping statutes and/or rules should be construed to be consistent with each other, and one should not be held to preempt the other only if there is a manifest inconsistency between them. See *Showpiece Homes Corp. v. Assurance Co. Of Am.*, 38 P. 3d 47 (Colo. 2001); *Ciardi v. F.*

Hoffman-La Roche, Ltd., 436 Mass. 53, 762 No.E. 2d 303 (2002)

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