2010

Vilma Estrada v. Robin Mendoza, Fred W. Almanza,
Feria Access LLC, Southern Management
Professional Limited Liability Company, Does 1-50
: Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This court has jurisdiction over this appeal by virtue of the provisions of Utah Code Ann. § 78A-4-103(j).

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Appellate review for a motion for judgment on the pleadings is one of correctness.

Miller v. Gastronomy, Inc., 2005 UT App 80, ¶6 (Utah Ct. App. 2005).

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS, STATUTES AND RULES

Utah R. App. P. 11(e)(2)

Transcript required of all evidence regarding challenged finding or conclusion. If the appellant intends to urge on appeal that a finding or conclusion is unsupported by or is contrary to the evidence, the appellant shall include in the record a transcript of all evidence relevant to such finding or conclusion. Neither the court nor the appellee is obligated to correct appellant's deficiencies in providing the relevant portions of the transcript.

Utah Code § 13-11-3, -4, -5, Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act
See Appellants addendum

Utah Rules of Small Claims Procedure
See Addendum.

Utah R. Civ. P. 64D
See Addendum.

Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(5)
(a)(5) A statement of the issues presented for review, including for each issue: the standard of appellate review with supporting authority; and
(a)(5)(A) citation to the record showing that the issue was preserved in the trial court; or
(a)(5)(B) a statement of grounds for seeking review of an issue not preserved in the trial court.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Appellants failed to provide a complete record to this Court as required by Utah R. App. P. 11(e)(2) when they failed to provide a transcript of a telephonic hearing which was held on March 11, 2010, and therefore the judgment is presumed to be valid.

Appellants are challenging the findings and conclusions of the trial court, and yet Appellants have failed to marshal the evidence supporting the trial court's finding and conclusions, and therefore the appeal should be denied.

Appellants' appeal argues that the trial court erred when it allowed Appellees to raise numerous issues for the first time in a reply memorandum or at oral argument, however, with regard to two of those issues, Appellants failed to properly preserve those issues for appeal, having failed to object. Furthermore, Appellants' appeal also makes arguments with regard to preemption, however, not only did Appellants fail to preserve the issue for appeal, Appellants never made arguments in that regard at the trial level.

Appellants original Complaints argued that Appellees had violated the Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act ("UCSPA"). The actions of Appellees upon which Appellants based their claims were neither deceptive nor unconscionable, and therefore not actionable under the UCSPA.

Where the Appellants undertook an action which as a matter of law was not available to them, there are no circumstances which would enable Appellants to correct a deficiency and refile, and therefore the trial court's dismissal with prejudice was appropriate.

ARGUMENT

I. APPELLANTS FAILED TO PROVIDE THE COURT WITH A COMPLETE RECORD, AND THEREFORE THE JUDGMENT IS PRESUMED TO BE VALID

The Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure require the appellant to provide a transcript of all relevant evidence.

Transcript required of all evidence regarding challenged finding or conclusion. If the appellant intends to urge on appeal that a finding or conclusion is unsupported by or is contrary to the evidence, the appellant shall include in the record a transcript of all evidence relevant to such finding or conclusion. Neither the court nor the appellee is obligated to correct appellant's deficiencies in providing the relevant portions of the transcript.

Utah R. App. P. 11(e)(2) (emphasis in original). Appellants failed to provide a transcript of all relevant evidence, and this Court has held that in such situations the judgment being appealed is presumed to be valid. "Since counsel failed to provide this court with all relevant evidence bearing on the issues raised on appeal, as required by Utah R. App. P. 11(e)(2), we can only presume that the judgment was supported by sufficient evidence." *State v. Nine Thousand One Hundred Ninety-Nine Dollars*, 791 P.2d 213, 217 (Utah Ct. App. 1990) (citing *Intermountain Power Agency v. Bowers-Irons Recreation Land & Cattle Co.*, 786 P.2d 250, 252 (Utah Ct. App. 1990); *Bevan v. J.H. Constr. Co.*, 669 P.2d 442, 443 (Utah 1983)); see also *State v. Cramer*, 2002 UT 9, ¶¶26-28 (Utah 2002).

On February 16, 2010, the trial court held oral arguments for Appellees' Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings. At the conclusion of that hearing, the trial court indicated it would issue an oral decision telephonically. On March 11, 2010, the trial court held a telephonic hearing wherein the trial court delivered its oral decision ("Tele-hearing").

Appellants have provided a transcript of the February 16, 2010, hearing, but Appellants have failed to provide this Court with a transcript of the March 11, 2010 Tele-hearing.¹

Appellants have identified eight (8) issues on appeal (Pla. Brief, 1-4). Issue No. 1 (timeliness) was only briefly referenced during the Tele-hearing, and Issue No. 8 (dismissal with prejudice) was not discussed. However, each of the other six issues on appeal was discussed extensively during the Tele-hearing. Indeed, the Tele-hearing was an extensive analysis by the trial court applying the facts to the law and drawing the appropriate conclusions. Appellants now come before this Court, questioning the appropriateness of the trial court's ruling and analysis, the findings and conclusions, and yet Plaintiff fails to provide this Court with all relevant evidence.

With regard to Issue Nos. 2-3 (preemption), as argued below in Section IV, Appellants have injected the discussion of "preemption" into this appeal, despite the fact that neither the parties nor the trial court discussed preemption. Nonetheless, the trial court took considerable time at the Tele-hearing to analyze how the Utah Rules of Small Claims Procedure and Rule 64D of the Utah Rules of Civil Procedure affected Appellants' claims under the UCSPA.

With regard to Issue No. 4 (civil conspiracy), the trial court took considerable time at the Tele-hearing to analyze the claim of civil conspiracy, both generally and specifically, and included a discussion of the case law which the trial court relied upon.

¹ At the conclusion of the March 11, 2010 Tele-hearing, the trial court instructed counsel for Defendants to prepare findings, conclusion, and an order consistent with the trial court's ruling. To assist with that task, counsel for Defendants requested an audio recording of the Tele-hearing. (R. 261). The Tele-hearing was 20 minutes and seven seconds in duration (20:07). Counsel for Defendants prepared an informal written transcript for its own purposes, and the result was a six-page transcript (1" margins, 12 point font, single spaced).

Appellees will not include any additional argument in response to this issue because Appellants failed to provide the portion of the record upon which Appellees would need to rely.²

With regard to Issue Nos. 5-7 (UCSPA), the trial court took considerable time at the Tele-hearing to analyze the facts and how they applied to the elements of the UCSPA regarding both deceptive and unconscionable acts, which analysis included responses to questions from Appellants' counsel. Appellees will discuss these claims more in detail below in Section V.

Appellants argue that the trial court's conclusions were unsupported and contrary to the facts before it. Accordingly, Appellants' failure to provide a complete record results in a presumption "that the judgment was supported by sufficient evidence." *Id.* Accordingly, Plaintiff's appeal should be denied.

II. APPELLANT FAILED TO MARSHAL THE EVIDENCE, AND THEREFORE THE APPEAL SHOULD BE DENIED

This Court has held that "[t]he challenging party must marshal all relevant evidence presented at trial which tends to support the findings and demonstrate why the findings are clearly erroneous." *Bell v. Elder*, 782 P.2d 545, 547 (Utah App. 1989). This Court has "shown no reluctance to affirm when the appellant fails to adequately marshal the evidence." *West Valley City v. Majestic Investment Company*, 818 P.2d 1311, 1313 (Utah App. 1991).

² Furthermore, an element of civil conspiracy requires is an unlawful, overt act. If Appellants claims under the Utah Consumer Sales Practices Act do not survive, then the civil conspiracy claim could not survive.

In *West Valley City*, Judge Orme held that “[a]fter marshaling the evidence supporting the trial court’s findings, the City must then show that these same findings are so lacking in support as to be against the clear weight of the evidence, thus making them clearly erroneous. *Id.* at 1315 (citation and internal quotations omitted). West Valley City had presented the Court of Appeals with a brief that contained extensive quotes from the record. The Court found this an inadequate marshaling and explained,

The marshaling concept does not reflect a desire to merely have pertinent excerpts from the record readily available to a reviewing court. The marshaling process is not unlike becoming the devil’s advocate. Counsel must extricate himself or herself from the client’s shoes and fully assume the adversary’s position. In order to properly discharge the duty of marshaling the evidence, the challenger must present, in comprehensive and fastidious order, every scrap of competent evidence introduced at trial which supports the very findings the appellant resists. After constructing this magnificent array of supporting evidence, the challenger must ferret out a fatal flaw in the evidence. The gravity of this flaw must be sufficient to convince the appellate court that the court’s finding resting upon the evidence is clearly erroneous. Appellants often overlook or disregard this heavy burden.

West Valley City, 818 at 1315. The Court acknowledged that there was a “general catalogue of evidence,” but that “[w]hat the City has not done is to correlate particular items of evidence with the challenged findings and convince us of the court’s missteps in application of the evidence to its findings.” *Id.* Because of this, the Court of Appeals could not find the findings of facts to be clearly erroneous. “The challenge to the legal conclusions rises and falls with the factual findings sought to be challenged.” *Id.*

Appellants’ Brief fails in this regard. Appellants have not marshaled the evidence. While Appellants outline what the original facts, and the procedural history, they do not become the devil’s advocate. The Appellants do not show the Appellees’ argument and

evidence and then ferret out flaws in the same argument and evidence, showing against the clear weight of the evidence why it is clearly erroneous. The Appellants have failed to marshal the evidence and therefore this Court should deny their appeal.

III. APPELLANTS FAILED TO PROPERLY PRESERVE ALL OF THEIR OBJECTIONS RELATED TO ISSUES RAISED IN AN UNTIMELY FASHION BY APPELLEES

In Appellants' Statement of Issues for Appeal, Appellants attempt to cite to the record to show where Appellants preserved the issue for appeal, as required by Utah R. App. P. 24(a)(5)(A). Issue No. 1 deals with whether Appellees raised issues for the first time in their Reply Memorandum or during oral argument, which Appellant argues deprived them of an opportunity adequately respond. (Pla. Brief, 1, 17). Neither the Statement of Issues nor Appellants argument ever identifies what those specific issues are. However, as part of the statement of facts and statement of the case, Appellants identify four arguments which Appellees made for the first time in their Reply Memorandum: (a) "failure to challenge the writs of garnishment timely barred any UCSPA or Civil Conspiracy claims," (Pla. Brief, 6, 13), (b) failure to have properly pled the claim of civil conspiracy, (Pla. Brief, 6, 13), (c) the "UCSPA does not apply to lawsuits to collect consumer debts," (Pla. Brief, 13), and (d) "Defendants alleged conduct vis a vis the inflated and wrongful garnishments was not 'deceptive' or 'unconscionable' [under the UCSPA]." (Pla. Brief, 14).³

³ Appellees concede that these four issues were not raised in Appellees' Memorandum in Support of Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings. However, Appellants' Memorandum in Opposition to Motion for Judgment on the Pleadings argued that the factual allegations of the Complaints met the elements of the UCSPA, and included citations to the UCSPA. In reply thereto, Appellees analyzed the UCSPA and its application to the facts, and therefore such arguments were properly before the trial court.

Appellants have not preserved any objection to the last two issues. Statement of Issue No. 1 states that Appellants' objections of untimeliness were preserved during the oral argument on February 16, 2011. (Pla. Brief, 1). A review of the transcript pages identified by Appellants shows that Appellants did object to the garnishment and civil conspiracy arguments being raised for the first in a reply memorandum. However, at no point in those cited pages, or at any point in the hearing, did Appellants object to the untimeliness of the arguments related to the application of the UCSPA to collection activities, and especially to the 'deceptive' or 'unconscionable' determination. "Under ordinary circumstances, we will not consider an issue brought for the first time on appeal unless the trial court committed plain error or exceptional circumstances exist." *State v. Pinder*, 114 P.3d 551, 561 (Utah 2005) (quoting *State v. Nelson-Waggoner*, 94 P.3d 186 (Utah 2004)).

IV. THE ISSUE OF PREEMPTION WAS NEVER ARGUED BEFORE THE TRIAL COURT, AND THEREFORE WAS NOT PRESERVED FOR APPEAL

The Statement of Issues includes two items related to preemption, Issues Nos. 2-3. For these two issues, Appellants cite to the transcript of the oral argument held on February 16, 2010. Within the transcript, Appellants cite to pages 17-34, an 18-page spread. Such a large citation is inconsistent with the intent of Rule 24(a)(5)(A).⁴ The Court, and appellees, should not be required to re-read the entire transcript to find where Appellants properly raised the issue. A review of the transcript shows that Appellants essentially cited to the pages where Appellants' counsel was making his argument; in

⁴ With the exception of Issue No. 1, the other seven issues on appeal cite to this same large spread. Issue No. 1 actually provides pin-point citations. The other seven issues on appeal should not be considered by this Court because Appellants' Brief fails to conform to Rule 24(a)(5)(A).

other words, Appellants *cannot* provide a pin-point citation because Appellants never preserved the issue for appeal. Instead, Appellants are asking this Court to either do the work for them and locate the actual citation, or Appellants are hoping the Court will hold that the issue was raised by implication.

An actual reading of the transcript reveals that at no point did Appellants' counsel ever argue, or raise by implication, the issue of preemption. "Under ordinary circumstances, we will not consider an issue brought for the first time on appeal unless the trial court committed plain error or exceptional circumstances exist." *Id.* Appellants' Brief fails to conform to Rule 24(a)(5), Appellants failed to preserve this issue below, and Appellants failed to argue plain error, and therefore any arguments relating to preemption should be disregarded, and the appeal should be denied.

V. THE ALLEGED ACTIONS OF APPELLEES WERE NEITHER DECEPTIVE NOR UNCONSCIONABLE

The three main factual allegations made by Appellants at the trial court level were that Appellees made unlicensed loans, filed a lawsuit in an inconvenient forum, and excessively garnished the Appellants. (R. 238-239). None of the actions fits within the definition of deceptive under the UCSPA. To be actionable under the UCSPA, an act must first be committed as part of a "consumer transaction," which is defined in Utah Code § 13-11-3. The section dealing with deceptive acts then states as follows: "(1) A deceptive act or practice by a supplier in connection with a consumer transaction violates this chapter whether it occurs before, during, or after the transaction. (2) Without limiting the scope of Subsection (1), a supplier commits a deceptive act or practice if the supplier

knowingly or intentionally:" and then goes on to list 23 different acts that would be considered deceptive. Utah Code § 13-11-4. This is an exhaustive list. The qualifier in Subsection (2), "[w]ithout limiting the scope of Subsection (1)", does not expand the 23 items listed in Subsection (2), it only refers to the timing of the act, whether "before, during, or after the transaction." None of the three factual allegations (unlicensed loan, inconvenient forum, excessive garnishments) made by Appellants fall within the 23 listed acts.

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